

ORDINANCE NO. -----

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5 (AMIMALS AND FOWL), OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF PINELLAS PARK, PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BY DELETING ARTICLE I. "IN GENERAL" IN ITS ENTIRETY AND CREATING A NEW ARTICLE I. "IN GENERAL"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-201 "DEFINITIONS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-202 "ANIMALS OR ANIMAL PREMISES CREATING NUISANCES"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-203 "LICENSING AND VACCINATION REQUIRED"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-204 "KEEPING OF VIETNAMESE POTBELLIED PIGS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-205 "RESTRAINT REQUIRED"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTIONS 5-206 THROUGH 5-208 "RESERVED"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", BY CREATING A NEW SECTION 5-206 "ANIMALS KEPT IN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS" WHILE RESERVING SECTIONS 5-207 AND 5-208 "RESERVED"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-209 "UNLAWFUL TO HAVE POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF CERTAIN ANIMALS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-210 "CONFINEMENT OF CERTAIN DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-212, "DISTURBANCES UNLAWFUL"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-213 "CRUELTY TO ANIMALS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-214, "RABIES CONTROL"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", SECTION 5-215, "INVESTIGATION; ENFORCEMENT OF ARTICLE PROVISIONS"; BY AMENDING ARTICLE II. "ANIMAL CONTROL", BY DELETING SECTION 5-216 "PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE" IN ITS ENTIRETY; BY AMENDING ARTICLE III. "EQUESTRIAN RIDING", BY DELETING SECTION 5-303 "PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE" IN ITS ENTIRETY; BY CREATING A NEW ARTICLE IV. "PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER"; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH CODE; PROVIDING FOR THE INCLUSION OF SUCH AMENDED ORDINANCE IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES HEREWITH TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

---

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINELLAS PARK, PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinellas Park finds that it is necessary to amend the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park pertaining to animals and fowl in order to better provide for the health, safety and welfare of the citizens and residents of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinellas Park finds that the numerical limitations of certain animals as set forth

herein as reasonable and appropriate and provides a balance of the rights of property owners and adjacent citizens.

**SECTION ONE:** That Chapter 5 "Animals and Fowl", Article I. "In General" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, is hereby deleted in its' entirety and a new Article I. In General is hereby created so that said Article shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**ARTICLE I.**  
**IN GENERAL**

**Sec. 5-101. Livestock and fowl running at large; prohibited.**

~~The running or roaming at large of livestock or fowl is hereby forbidden within the City Limits, and it is hereby declared to be the duty of the owner and of the person in charge thereof to keep such livestock or fowl from so running or roaming at large.~~

~~Livestock or fowl that are off lands owned or leased by the owner or the person in charge of same are to be considered as being at large notwithstanding the presence of a herder or attendant.~~

**Sec. 5-102. Livestock and fowl running at large; prohibited--  
Exception.**

~~The provisions of this Article shall not be construed as prohibiting livestock or fowl from being driven for the purposes of changing their pastures, pens or other like purposes, provided that their destination within the City shall be a properly fenced pasture or pen, and provided there are sufficient attendants present to keep, and that they do so keep, such livestock or fowl from trespassing on lands adjoining the road over which same are being driven.~~

~~(Ord. No. 22, 4 15 1948)~~

**Sec. 5-103. Duty to fence premises, etc.**

~~It is hereby declared to be the duty of the owner and of the person in charge of livestock or fowl to keep same within adequately fenced, pastures or pens, or to keep livestock securely chained or tied, and it is the duty of the owner and persons in charge of livestock or fowl to maintain fences on his premises in a sufficient state of repair so that the livestock or fowl will not be able to escape and subsequently roam at large.~~

~~(Ord. No. 2, 4 15 1948)~~

~~Sec. 5-104. Bird sanctuary; exceptions; destruction of birds deemed nuisances; penalty for violation of section.~~

~~— (A) The entire area embraced within the corporate limits of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, be and hereby is designated as a bird sanctuary.~~

~~— (B) It shall be unlawful to trap, hunt, shoot, or molest in any manner any bird or wild fowl, or to rob bird nests or wild fowl nests; provided, if starlings or similar birds are found to be congregating in such numbers in a particular locality within the City that they constitute a nuisance or menace to health or property in the opinion of the City Manager of the City, and no satisfactory remedy is found to abate such nuisance, then the City Manager shall apply to the Humane Society or other appropriate agency for the destruction of said birds in such numbers as is deemed advisable by said City Manager.~~

~~— (C) Any person violating any provision of this Section shall be punished by a fine not exceeding Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding ten (10) days, or both such fine and such imprisonment.~~

~~(Ord. No. 296, 1 12 1967; Ord. No. 1081, 5 28 1981)~~

**ARTICLE I.**  
**IN GENERAL**

**Sec. 5-101. Duty to fence premises, etc.**

It is hereby declared to be the duty of the owner and of the person in charge of livestock or fowl on any property within the City to keep same adequately fenced.

**Sec. 5-102. Bird sanctuary; exceptions; destruction of birds deemed nuisances; penalty for violation of section.**

(A) The entire area embraced within the corporate limits of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, be and hereby is designated as a bird sanctuary.

(B) It shall be unlawful to trap, hunt, shoot, or molest in any manner any bird or wild fowl, or to rob bird nests or wild fowl nests; provided, if starlings or similar birds are found to be congregating in such numbers in a particular locality within the City that they constitute a nuisance or menace to health or property in the opinion of the City Manager of the City, and no satisfactory remedy is found to abate such nuisance, then the City Manager shall apply to the Humane Society or other appropriate agency for the destruction of said birds in such numbers as is deemed advisable by said City Manager.

**SECTION TWO:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby

amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-201 "Definitions"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**ARTICLE II.  
ANIMAL CONTROL**

**Sec. 5-201. Definitions.**

As used in this Article, and for the purpose of enforcement of the provisions imposed by this Article, the following terms shall mean:

~~*Animal:* Any dog or other animal kept as a pet.~~

*Animal - dangerous or vicious:* Any animal, whether wild or domesticated that has aggressively bitten, attacked or endangered, or has inflicted severe injury on a human being on public or private property; has more than once severely injured or killed a domestic animal while off the owner's property; has been used primarily or in part for the purpose of fighting or trained for fighting; or has, when unprovoked, chased or approached a person upon the streets, sidewalks, or any private property other than the private property of its owner or public grounds in a menacing fashion or apparent attitude of attack.

*Animal - domestic:* Animals that are routinely kept for personal use or enjoyment, which are not exhibited to the public, nor raised for commercial purposes or profit. Domestic animals shall include dogs, cats, mice, hamsters, rabbits, birds, and similar animals that are owned by and raised for the personal enjoyment of the residents of the household where kept, or any other animal deemed appropriate by the City Manager or his designee.

*Animal - farm or livestock:* Animals commonly associated with farm use, or raised for commercial purposes or profit, including, but not limited to, hoofed mammals such as cattle, sheep, goats, swine, and horses, fowl, or any other animal deemed appropriate by the City Manager or his designee.

*At large:* Any animal shall be deemed to be at large when it is off the property of ~~its~~ its owner and not under control of a competent person.

*Attack:* An overtly aggressive act including but no limited to biting, scratching or clawing which involves actual physical contact between the animal and any person.

*Exposed to rabies:* An animal has been exposed to rabies within the meaning of this Article if it has been bitten by, or been exposed to, any animal having been infected with rabies.

*Humane society:* Any society ~~who's~~ whose duly constituted purpose is to prevent cruelty to animals, as so designated by the City Council, Board of County Commissioners or State of Florida.

*Kennel:* Any person, ~~group of persons, or corporation~~ engaged in the commercial business of breeding, buying, or selling or boarding animals, or providing day care or boarding services for more than five (5) adult animals of the same species.

*Owner:* Any person, group of persons, or corporation owning, keeping or harboring an animal or animals.

*Public nuisance animal or animal premises:* Any animal or combination of animals, or animal premises, that unreasonably annoys humans, endangers the life or health of other animals or persons, or substantially interferes with the rights of citizens, or the enjoyment of life or property.

*Restraint:* An animal is under restraint within the meaning of ~~the~~ this Article if ~~he~~ it is controlled by a leash, or at "heel" beside a competent person and obedient to that person's commands, or on or within a vehicle being driven or parked on the streets, or within the property limits of its owner or keeper.

*Spayed female:* Any ~~bitch~~ female animal which has been operated upon to prevent conception.

**SECTION THREE:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-202 "Animals or animal premises creating nuisances"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-202. Animals or animal premises creating nuisances.**

(A) The owner, person acting for the owner, or person in control of any animal or animal premises that has been deemed a public nuisance animal or animal premises, as defined under this Article and outlined in this Section, shall be deemed to be in violation of this Section.

(A B) It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or harbor any animal which barks, whines, howls, or makes other utterances of noises in a repeated or constant manner so as to create a public nuisance, or to keep or harbor any animal which chases after ~~persons or~~ vehicles, bicycles, persons, or other animals in a manner which is likely to cause injury to person or property, or to keep or harbor any animal which destroys or damages property of another, or to keep or harbor any animal or provide any animal premises which ~~otherwise~~ unreasonably interferes with the use and enjoyment of the property of another,

or have control or custody of any ~~dog or cat~~ animal which is running at large, causes fouling of the air by odor, defecates on the property of another, or is offensive or dangerous to the public health, safety, or welfare, or to keep or harbor any animal or provide any animal premises that is considered to be a nuisance or menace in the opinion of the City Manager and/or his designee. ~~regardless of the knowledge, intent or culpability of the owner.~~

(B C) It shall be unlawful for any person to feed or distribute grain, ~~or~~ other food or garbage of any kind or nature in such a manner as to attract wild or domestic birds, fowl, mammals, or other animals of any kind or nature in confined or concentrated areas in such numbers as to create a public nuisance.

~~— (C) Any person found in violation of this Section is subject to a Category III offense fine as set by Pinellas County Ordinance Class fines.~~

~~— (D) Any person convicted of a violation of this Section by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$250.00). Each day any violation of any provision of this Section shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.~~

**SECTION FOUR:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-203 "Licensing and vaccination required"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-203. Licensing and vaccination required.**

(A) *License required.* No person shall keep any animal required to be licensed within the City limits unless such animal is licensed as required by law.

(B) *Vaccination of animals required.* Every owner of an animal, whether or not such animal is required by law to be licensed, shall cause such animal to be vaccinated against rabies on an annual basis, when such vaccination is required in accordance with accepted veterinary practice.

**SECTION FIVE:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-204

"Keeping of Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-204. Keeping of Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs.**

(A) Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs (*sus, scrofa domestica*) shall be prohibited in the City limits, except in "F" Farm District.

~~(B) The number of Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs (*sus, scrofa domestica*) which lawfully existed and for which documentation exists with a date prior to the effective date of this Ordinance shall be limited to two (2) per dwelling unit, and nothing in this Code shall permit the breeding of said pigs for any commercial purpose. Said pigs must have registration paper to show that they are Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs. Section 5-211 "Defecation in Public Places; Including Certain Private Property" and Section 2-1017(B) "Domestic Animals" shall also apply to Vietnamese Potbellied Pigs.~~

**SECTION SIX:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-205 "Restraint required"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-205. Restraint required.**

The owner or person acting for the owner shall keep his/her animal(s) under restraint as heretofore defined at all times and shall not permit such animal(s) to be at large, and off the premises or property of the owner, unless under the control of a competent person.

**SECTION SEVEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-206-5-208 "Reserved" by creating a new Section 5-206 "Animals kept in residential zoning districts"; with Sections 5-207 and 5-208 remaining as "Reserved" the new said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

~~**Sec. 5-206-5-208. Reserved.**~~



**Sec. 5-206. Animals kept in residential zoning districts.**

(A) Domestic animals, as defined in Sec. 5-201, may be kept in residential zoning districts.

(B) No more than four (4) female chickens (i.e., hens) per single-family residential lot are permitted. Such hens must be owned by the household occupants where kept and raised for personal enjoyment and/or in-home egg consumption, provided there shall be no breeding and no commercial use. No male chickens (i.e., roosters) are permitted.

(C) When animals permitted in this Section are housed in an outdoor coop or similar structure on a single-family residential lot, such coop or similar structure shall not be located within the front yard of any interior lot, shall not exceed six (6) feet in height, shall be erected to maintain a setback of fifteen (15) feet from all abutting property lines, shall be screened from view from the right of way by a six (6) feet high solid fence, and shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition at all times.

(D) Farm or livestock animals, as defined in Sec. 5-201, are prohibited in residential zoning districts, with the exception of the "F" Farm District, and where also permitted in this Section.

(E) No kennels, as defined in Sec. 5-201 and Sec. 18-1502.2, are permitted in residential zoning districts.

(F) Nothing in this Section is meant to restrict equestrian uses which are provided for in the "F" Farm District, "RE" Residential Estate District, and "RR" Rural Residential District, nor equestrian riding which is provided for in Secs. 5-301 and 5-302.

(G) Animal owners shall comply with all applicable State and/or County laws and regulations related to the keeping and/or housing of their animals.

**Sec. 5-207--5-208. Reserved.**

**SECTION EIGHT:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-209 "Unlawful to have possession or control of certain animals"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-209. Unlawful to have possession or control of certain animals.**



Unless authorized in writing by the State of Florida, the keeping or possession of any of the following types of animals is prohibited anywhere within the corporate limits of the City of Pinellas Park:

Dangerous or vicious animals;  
Wild animals;  
Poisonous or venomous animals; and  
Any animal or animals otherwise prohibited by County, State or Federal law.

~~(A) It is unlawful for any person to keep or have in his possession or under his control any of the following animals within the corporate limits of the City of Pinellas Park.~~

- ~~1. Any dangerous or vicious animal, whether wild or domesticated. For purposes of this Section, a "dangerous or vicious animal" means any animal that, according to the records of Pinellas County Animal Control or any law enforcement agency:
  - ~~(a) Has aggressively bitten, attacked or endangered or has inflicted severe injury on a human being on public or private property;~~
  - ~~(b) Has more than once severely injured or killed a domestic animal while off the owner's property;~~
  - ~~(c) Has been used primarily or in part for the purpose of dogfighting or as a dog trained for dogfighting;~~
  - ~~(d) Has, when unprovoked, chased or approached a person upon the streets, sidewalks, or any public grounds in a menacing fashion or apparent attitude of attack, provided that such actions are attested to in a sworn statement by one or more persons and verified through an investigation by the appropriate authority.~~~~
- ~~2. Animals categorized as Class I or Class II animals by the Florida Game and Freshwater Fish Commission in Section 39 6.002 of the Florida Administrative Code as the same may be amended from time to time.~~
- ~~3. Any poisonous or venomous animals.~~
- ~~4. Any animals otherwise prohibited by State or Federal law.~~

~~(B) The provisions of this Section shall not apply to any of the animals listed in Subsection (A) above which are lawfully in the possession or control of any duly licensed bona fide circus, fair, amusement park, zoological park, scientific institution, pet shop, or public or private school when used for educational purposes; or to K-9 or guard dogs in the possession or control of any authorized person for security purposes.~~

~~— (C) Any person found in violation of this Section is subject to a Category I offense fine as set by Pinellas County Ordinance Class Fines.~~

~~— (D) Any person violating the provisions of this Section shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine not to exceed Three Hundred Dollars (\$300.00) or imprisonment for not more than thirty (30) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense.~~

**SECTION NINE:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-210 "Confinement of certain dogs and other animals"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-210. Confinement of certain dogs and other animals.**

~~(A) Every female animal which is in heat shall be kept confined in a building or secure enclosure in such a manner that such female animal cannot come in contact with a non-neutered male animal of the same species except for intentional breeding purposes.~~

~~(B) The owner shall confine within a building or secure enclosure, every fierce, dangerous, or vicious animal whether or not such animal is required to be licensed, and not take such animal out of such building or secure enclosure unless such animal is securely muzzled; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to permit the keeping of fierce, vicious, or dangerous animals within the City as may otherwise be prohibited.~~

**SECTION TEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-212 "Disturbances unlawful"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-212. Disturbances unlawful.**

It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or harbor within the City any dog or other animal ~~kept as a pet~~, which barks, howls or makes other noises by day or night which affect the peace and quiet of any person, persons or family.

**SECTION ELEVEN** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-213 "Cruelty to animals"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-213. Cruelty to animals.**

It shall be unlawful for any person to torture or ill-treat any animal whether belonging to himself or to any other person. It shall be unlawful for any person to poison any animal ~~dog, cat or wild animal kept as a pet,~~ or to distribute poison in any manner whatsoever, with the intent or the purpose of poisoning any such animal, or to willfully injure or disfigure any such animal within the City, ~~except that any lawfully authorized officer or agent who exposes poison~~ except that any person who lawfully distributed poison to be taken by predatory animals or rodents, etc., shall be exempt from the provisions of this Section.

**SECTION TWELVE:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-214 "Rabies control"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-214. Rabies control.**

The laws of the State of Florida and/or Pinellas County and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto pertaining to rabies control by said State and/or County ~~Health Departments~~ shall govern in every instance in which a person is bitten, scratched by the teeth or otherwise wounded by a dog or other animal, domestic or wild, or every instance in which a person has handled a known or suspected animal.

**SECTION THIRTEEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-215 "Investigation; enforcement of article provisions"; which

said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**Sec. 5-215. Investigation; enforcement of article provisions.**

For the purpose of discharging the duties imposed by this Article and to enforce its provisions, any Police Officer ~~/Environmental Technician or Community Compliance Specialist~~ is empowered by this Article or as otherwise provided by law ~~to enter upon any premises upon which an animal is kept or harbored~~ and to demand ~~the exhibition by the keeper or owner~~ of such animal ~~and/or produce for inspection the applicable and current documentation, registration papers, immunization records and/or the license for such animal.~~

**SECTION FOURTEEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article II., "Animal Control", Sec. 5-216 "Penalty for violation of article"; which said Section shall hereafter be deleted in its entirety.

**~~Sec. 5-216. Penalty for violation of article.~~**

~~Any person violating any provision of this Article shall, except as otherwise provided herein, upon conviction, be punished by a fine not exceeding Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00); and if such violation be continued, each day's violation shall be a separate offense.~~

**SECTION FIFTEEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by amending Article III., "Equestrian Riding", Sec. 5-303 "Penalty for violation of article" which said Section shall hereafter be deleted in its entirety.

**~~Sec. 5-303. Penalty for violation of article.~~**

~~Any person who shall violate the provisions of this Article shall, upon conviction thereof, be punished by a fine of up to Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00), or by imprisonment for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment at the discretion of the County Court Judge~~

**SECTION SIXTEEN:** That Chapter 5 (Animals and Fowl) of the

Code of Ordinances of the City of Pinellas Park, Florida, is hereby amended by creating "Article IV, Penalty for Violation of Chapter"; which said Section shall hereafter be and read as follows:

**ARTICLE IV.**  
**PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF CHAPTER**

Any person, firm, corporation or other entity who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to a fine of up to \$500 for each such violation. Each day of such violation shall be considered to be a separate offense.

**SECTION SEVENTEEN::** That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance be, and they are hereby repealed insofar as the same affect this ordinance.

**SECTION EIGHTEEN::** That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately after its passage and approval in the manner provided by law.

FIRST READING THE \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2013.

PUBLISHED THE \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2013.

PUBLIC HEARING THE \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2013.

PASSED THIS \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2013.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

APPROVED THIS \_\_\_\_\_ DAY OF \_\_\_\_\_, 2013.

---

SANDRA L. BRADBURY  
MAYOR

ATTEST:

---

DIANE M. CORNA  
CITY CLERK